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Mayor’s Message 
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I am pleased to present the City of Dawson Creek’s 2007 Annual Report. This 
document is an annual progress report, including objectives and measures for 
the coming year – our 50th as a City - and a reflection on our previous years’ 
achievements. You will also find a snapshot of operations, services and 
financial information.  
 
Developing priorities, programs and policy is a community effort. Prioritizing 
capital works and investments in infrastructure that are key to our 
community’s prosperity is our commitment. Strong growth, a stable 
environment for investment and exceptional quality of life are the hallmarks of 
our community and a heritage we are proud of. 
 
It is an honour and privilege to work with Council addressing your issues and 
reflecting your wishes on where your tax dollars are spent. A transparent 
budgeting process, capital investment program, strategic planning and sound 

financial decision making are the centerpiece for our community. 
 
There are countless success stories instilling confidence in our community. Some of our most recent successes are the 
opening of the Lakota Agri-Centre and the Kenn Borek Aquatic Centre and recognition of our City as sustainability 
leaders on both the federal and provincial level. The catalysts of energy development, agriculture, forestry and tourism 
will continue to shape our future. We recognize that our most valuable resource is our people and continue to be 
committed to innovative social, cultural, economic and environmental vitality. Together we are making a 
difference…for today and for the next 50 years – we are www.planningforpeople.ca 
 
I have great confidence knowing that, by working together, we can maintain our sense of community while managing 
the pressures of growth and encouraging investment. We look forward to the completion of our social planning, the 
continuation of investment in the heart of the community downtown, the grand opening of the South Peace 
Community Multiplex and, of course, our ongoing 50th Anniversary celebrations. 
 
I’d like to thank my colleagues on Council and pay tribute to the dedicated staff, advisory committees, volunteers and 
you, the residents, for your efforts in making the City of Dawson Creek a truly wonderful community I’m proud to call 
home. 

 

http://www.planningforpeople.ca/
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City Council Goals & Performance Indicators 
The Dawson Creek Vision tells us where we want to go, but not how to get there.  The various strategic planning 
documents are tools to help direct us to what is most important. In the broadest terms, the key process being focus on 
is good governance. From that fall activities which support alignment to the new vision, mission and guiding 
principles, community planning and sustainability.  
 
This annual report is a requirement under the Community Charter. It includes a review of objectives and measures 
and is a progress report on previous year's efforts. The report provides a snap shot of municipal services and 
operations highlight of the past year and looks toward 2008.  
 
The progress measurements are based on a framework of progressive excellence using national quality criteria to 
improve how we work. 
 
2007 & 2008 GOALS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
Clearly communicate strategic direction to stakeholders 
by ensuring: 
• Stakeholders have been presented with information 

in a variety of ways to increase awareness of 
organizational vision, mission & values 

• Council’s objectives are posted 
 

Reward and recognize contribution to the strategic goals 
by ensuring: 
• Stakeholders are recognized for their efforts 
• Employee recognition is given  
• Creativity and innovation is recognized 
• Celebrate and acknowledge contributors 

 
Solicit feedback from stakeholders on achievement of 
strategic goals by ensuring: 
• Feedback is collected 
• There is a process in place for capturing suggestions 
• There is a process to solicit and discuss suggestions 
• Actions on feedback are reported 

 

Ensure alignment throughout organization to the strategic 
goals by: 
• Active communication of corporate vision, mission, 

guiding principles, goals and objectives  
• Communicating openly about organizational 

performance 
• Actively involve front end staff in reviewing and 

understanding corporate goals and objectives 
• Understanding corporate vision and values as a core 

competency for all staff 
• Incorporating integrity and ethics as a core 

competency for all staff 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

VISION STATEMENT 
Dawson Creek will be a visionary community that works together 
for innovative social, cultural, economic and environmental vitality. 

 
MISSION STATEMENT 

The Corporate Mission of the City of Dawson Creek is to provide 
excellence in service and leadership that promotes a dynamic 
community within a healthy environment for all generations. 

Back Row (left-right) Councillors Paul Gevatkoff, Alvin Stedel, Bud Powell and Brent Neumann,  
Front Row (left-right) Councillors Mike Bernier and Marilyn Belak, Mayor Calvin Kruk 
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GUIDING PRINCIPLES 
 

TRUST AND INTEGRITY 
We will have a reputation for acting with integrity and will 
earn the trust of our stakeholders by: 
 Keeping promises. 
 Pledging to align our actions with the guiding principles 

that support our vision. 
 Modeling competence and anchoring behaviour on enduring 

values. 
 Communicating with care and respect. 
 Working to develop positive relationships. 
 Sharing information in timely and comprehensive ways. 

 
INCLUSIVITY 
We will create an invitational climate by: 
 Ensuring all individuals have equal access to services 

and opportunities for success. 
 Seeking ways to reflect and celebrate the diversity of 

our community and ensuring physical accessibility. 
 Engaging people in issues that directly affect them. 
 Maintaining and strengthening our links to the First 

Nations, Aboriginal and Métis populations. 
 Making literacy concerns a core component of 

communication strategies. 

 
MODERN ECONOMY 
We will strengthen the community’s economic vitality by: 
 Establishing a climate that encourages responsible 

economic development. 
 Honouring small and big business partnerships and 

contributions 
 Focusing on and promoting the opportunities for 

economic development that are inherent in our 
community and region. 

 Encouraging projects that serve the local community 

and enhance regional self sufficiency in areas such as 
power, general supply, and food. 

 

CREATIVITY 
We will foster a culture of creativity, innovation, and 
learning by: 
 Encouraging cooperative and collaborative thinking. 
 Employing open dialogue and wide input into decision 

making and planning. 
 Supporting risk taking and challenging conventional 

practices. 
 Including learning opportunities in all actions. 

 
HEALTH 
We will optimize opportunities for healthy living by: 
 Developing an environment free from undue risk. 
 Providing opportunities to enhance physical, emotional, 

and spiritual well being. 
 Enhancing the cleanliness and aesthetic appearance of 

our community. 
 Promoting physical activity. 

 
THE ENVIRONMENT 
We will demonstrate respect for the future of the earth 
by: 
 Fostering recycling, reuse and reduced consumption. 
 Promoting, demonstrating and using renewable energy. 
 Advocating for the preservation of clean air, clean 

water and healthy land. 
 
LIFESTYLE 
We will nurture engagement in a collective sense of 
belonging and contribution by: 
 Celebrating arts, heritage and culture. 
 Creating recreational opportunities. 
 Providing opportunities for life-long learning. 
 Optimizing transportation and movement around the 

city. 
 Working to reduce crime rates and opportunities for 

crime in our community. 
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Community Profile & Economic Development 

Dawson Creek is located in northeast British Columbia, close to the Alberta border. It is the centre of what is known 
as the Peace River Area which extends across both provinces. For a better understanding of the community visit 
www.dawsoncreek.ca . The City’s greatest resource in a land rich with agricultural land, oil, gas, history, and culture, 
continues to be the people. With an expanding population of 12,500 serving a trading population of 55,000, Dawson 
Creek has maintained its pioneering/entrepreneurial spirit. The cooperative “can do” attitude is reflected in business, 
community events, and projects.  
 
Art, culture, sport and heritage interests are alive. City Residents support well over 100 community clubs and 
organizations including, but not limited to: theatrical groups, choirs, a symphonette, marching band, bluegrass 
festival, ongoing art exhibitions, art auction and festivals, Kiwanis Performing Arts Centre activities, summer antique 
car show, fall fair and pro rodeo events, and many more. For a list of events and community organizations see 
Community Partners at www.tourismdawsoncreek.com. 
 
The responsibility of community and economic development fall under Council and Administration.  The City 
provides informational packages to inquiries relating to business start-up and relocations, potential and new residents, 
employment opportunities, real estate – residential and commercial/industrial, conferences and any other type of 
general inquiry.  Information may be provided in the form of a referral to appropriate agencies, web-page information 
or as hard copies mailed.  Information available includes:  Dawson Creek / Chamber of Commerce magazine, Our 
Community, tourism brochures, e-cards, Oil & Gas Service directory, industry specific data, Community & Investment 
Guide, In the News [monthly news articles for each economic sector], real estate guides, maps and any other 
information we are able to provide to new or existing businesses or residents. 
 
ECONOMIC SECTOR HIGHLIGHTS 
Construction: 

- Assessment values increased from $738 million [2006] to $1,007.3 million. 
- Major construction projects over $1 million: South Peace Multiplex-Aquatic Centre, Agriplex, & Events 

Centre, Rotary Manor – Complex Care Facility, Chapel Hill Estates,   
Transportation: 
Traffic Circle [Round-about] upgrades:  $1,792,094] 
Upgrades to 8th Street 
Energy:  
Total Oil & Gas Crown sales totalled just below $1.05 Billion 
Major energy companies’ activity in the area included:  EnCana Corporation, Husky Energy Inc., CNRL, 
ConocoPhillips, EOG Resources Canada, Talisman Energy Inc, Imperial Oil Limited, Trident Resources Corp. Tundra 
Oil & Gas Ltd., Focus Energy Trust and Endev Energy Inc.,  
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Community History 
 

Dawson Creek Celebrates its 50th Anniversary 
 
The City of Dawson Creek is celebrating its 50th Anniversary of incorporation in 
2008. 
 
Dawson Creek was one of the farming communities established by European 
Canadian settlers moving west through the Peace River Country.  With the opening of a few stores and hotels in 1919, 
Dawson Creek became a dominant business centre in the area. The need to provide services for the rapidly growing 
community allowed Dawson Creek to become incorporated as a Village in 1936. 
 
In 1941, the Japanese attacked Pearl Harbour forcing the American and Canadian governments to re-evaluate their 
security. As one part of the wartime measures, 1,500 miles of road needed to be built.  Once a quiet village serving 
the townspeople and the agricultural community of the time, Dawson Creek burst into life in March 1942 as 
thousands of American soldiers and workers from private construction companies came to this area to work on 
constructing what was to become the famed Alaska Highway.   
 
The Village was reincorporated as a City in 1958 as the population had more than tripled between 1951 and 1961.  
For over fifty years, the famed Alaska Highway has been a significant draw for visitors and residents alike. Building the 
Alaska Highway is an epic tale that involves mystery, romance and intrigue. For a more complete history of the Peace 
River Region check out our local history site at www.calverley.ca or visit our recently opened Alaska Highway House 
located downtown across from the Mile ‘0’ Post. 
 
 

Photos: Courtesy of South Peace Historical Society 
Left – View looking south from NAR Park                         Right – Mile O Post & Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 

http://www.calverley.ca/


 
 
ALIGNING OPERATIONAL PLANNING TO COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC DIRECTION 
As part of the annual strategic departmental planning process, the City has begun to identify and prioritize key 
improvement issues, set goals, and identify measures.  Key improvement issues and goals are contained in the 
corporate and departmental plans.  
 
Corporate/Departmental Operational Planning is done annually by senior managers using an increasingly consistent 
format in consultation with their staff and includes: Goals, Objectives, Strategies, Program, Initiatives, Measures and 
Targets.  Departmental Operational Plans define activities and improvement goals supporting key services. Priorities 
are identified and aligned with our strategies. (2006-2007 transition priorities).  Actions are monitored through senior 
management meetings held after each Council meeting and Committee of the Whole Reports. 
 
 

ACTIVE PLANNING DOCUMENTS 

Financial Master Plan  
Capital Asset Management Plan  

Sustainability Plan – Ongoing 
Community Social Plan – Started 
Community Energy Plan – Ongoing 

South Peace Comprehensive Development Plan – Completed  

Water Quality Plan  
Source Water Management Plan  
Drinking Water Emergency Response Plan  
New Flood Plan  
Liquid Management Plan  

Emergency Response Plan  

Parks and Recreation Master Plan  
Integrated Pest Management Plan  

Heritage Plan - Completed 

Branding the Peace : 
Business Plan & Marketing Strategy (2002) 
Investment Attractions Strategy (2005) 
Marketing Plan for Sustainable Growth (2004) 
South Peace Economic Development Business Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Strategic Direction Planning & Alignment 

 
IMPROVEMENT PLANNING TOOLS 
Departmental Planning Improvement Tool templates include:  SMART (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relative, 
Time Bound) Goals, Timelines and assign responsibility.   
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Ongoing improvement planning is done where roadblocks or service gaps are identified by front end staff or customer 
feedback. Solicitation for citizen feedback is formally done through public meetings, surveys, focus groups and 
informally though day to day interaction with individual customers. These are most often celebrated as innovation 
initiatives, to encourage positive, proactive response to operational challenges and get those who are doing the work 
engaged in problem identification and problem solving. Communication internally and externally has been enhanced 
with the publishing of planning documents on line.   



Priorities & Key Success Factors 
 

TRANSITION 
 

• We develop and communicate key strategic factors & priorities. 
• Re-alignment between existing priorities (2006) and new priorities 2007: 

 

Key Strategic Factors & Priorities from which 2006 Objectives were drawn: 

Dynamic Healthy Community 
 
Good Governance Quality 

Sustainability 

Infrastructure  
Development & Planning 

Kenn Borek Aquatic Centre, EnCana Events Centre, Lakota 
Agricentre, Soccer Fields, Ball Park, Rotary Skateboard Park, Local 
Improvement Initiatives, Expanded On Line Services, Recreation 
Master Planning. 
 
Organizational Alignment, Quality Improvement Initiatives, NQI 
PEP Level I, Grants Application Process/Policy Review, 
Community Sustainability Plan, Fire Services Strategic Plan, 
Official Community Plan, Regional Development Planning, 
Financial Planning, Alternative Energy Study 

Water Quality Assurance Planning, Community Beautification, 
Integrated Pest Management Plan. 

Key Strategic Factors & Priorities from which 2007 Objectives are drawn: 

PR
IO

RI
TI

ES
 &

 S
TR

A
TE

G
IE

S 

Visionary Community 
 
Innovative: 
Social, Cultural, Economic & 
Environmental Vitality 
 
Excellence in Leadership; 
Principles 
 
Dynamic Healthy & 
Community 

 
Sustainability, Capital Asset Management Plan, Infrastructure 
Assessment Plan, Mission, Vision & Guiding Principles, 
Comprehensive Development Plan 
 
Heritage Planning, Social Planning, Performing Arts Centre, 
Attractions Master Plan, Community Development and Land Use 
Plans, Communication Plan: Economic Development and 
Tourism, Increase Partnerships with Cultural Groups, Tax 
Exemptions on Fiscal Improvements, Downtown Revitalization 
Incentives, 50th Anniversary Projects, Spirit of BC, Drug Strategy, 
Northern Medical Trust 
 
PEACE XL Initiative, PEP Level II. 
 
Water Quality Assurance Plan, Source Water Management Plan, 
Drinking Water Emergency Response Plan, Drug Strategy 
Planning, Northern Medical Trust. 
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We communicate plans inside and outside of the organization.  
 

• The Strategic and Corporate Plans (Vision, Mission and Guiding Principles) are circulated and reviewed at 
department meetings and incorporated into department plans and internal newsletters. 

• City priorities are presented to staff as part of biweekly senior management meetings and through financial 
planning initiatives. 

• Annual Reports, outlining progress on priorities, are circulated to both internal and external clients. 
• Corporate Plans are available on the City website, included in Council minutes, and available for viewing at 

City Hall. 
• City priorities are communicated via community publications, regular media interviews and updates, and 

reviewed as part of the public budgeting process and town hall meetings.  
• Senior Management Meetings are held bi-weekly to review Council and public input and action items lists.  
• As part of the rollout of our Quality Communication Plan, all employees (150+ to date) received information 

on priorities, rationale for adopting the quality program, and NQI and its criteria.  
• Senior Staff engage national, regional, provincial and communities/special interest groups in public 

presentations on a variety of City initiatives.  
• Principles of excellence, quality drivers and guiding principles are reinforced through games, puzzles and 

activities at workgroup meetings and contests included in the PEACE XL Newsletter. 
 
 
 
 
 
The City has always welcomed feedback from citizens. As a progressive 
community, Council recently adopted a policy intended to help streamline 
the process with the goal of effectively routing feedback to the best contact 
for appropriate follow up.  
 
The primary goal of a single point of contact is to make it as easy as 
possible for residents to contact City Hall and have their calls forwarded to 
the appropriate department to be addressed at the earliest possible time.   
 
The secondary goal is to identify the scope and types of issues being raised 
and to track the response time. Information from the system will allow leaders to better quantify, queue and review 
the organizations ability to respond: 
Statistics report beyond antidotal relevance to receiving one personal call related to a specific issue when those views 
are not in tune with the volume of calls.  
 
An effective system can support balanced and effective allocation of resources to what citizens' view as the key 
services rather than an individual perspective.  
 
 
 

Strategic Direction Communication 
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Consultation 
 
ADVISORY COMMITTEES  
 
The City has a number of processes and committees to support client input in development, budget preparation and 
service planning.  The City has representation on or works collaboratively with the following Boards, organizations 
and Committees: 
 
 

• Heritage Commission 
• 50th Anniversary Committee 
• Spirit of BC Committee 
• Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee 
• Drug Free DC Committee 
• Airport Advisory Committee  
• Climate & Energy Advisory Committee  
• Peace River Regional District 
• Regional Transportation Advisory Committee 
• North East Regional Advisory Council 
• South Peace Economic Development Commission 
• Branding the Peace 
• ICBC Crash Reduction Task Force 
• Community Services Network 
• Mile O Parks Society 
• Northern Rockies Alaska Highway Tourism Association 
• Tourism Dawson Creek 
• DC Athletic Association 
• DC Public Library Board 
• Fall Fair Board 
• Northwest Corridor Development Corporation 
• Chamber of Commerce 
• 2008 Northern BC Winter Games Committee 
• Arts & Culture Endowment Loan Program 
• LGMA, NCMA & UBCM 
• Municipal Finance Authority Member 
• South Peace Economic Development Commission 
• Northern Trust Board  
• Community Services Network 
• Art Gallery 
• Community Foundation Steering Committee 
• Dawson Creek Airshow Committee  
• Emergency Social Services 
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 Measurement 
Priorities are good governance, supported by alignment, planning and sustainability initiatives. 
Measurement is based on the national quality leadership criteria, established for the public sector.  
 
2007 LEADERSHIP STRENGTHS 

 A strategic planning process has been identified 

 The vision and mission were reviewed  and updated in 2007 

 Guiding principles were identified 

 Efforts are being made to support long term planning 

 Leaders are committed to the strategic approach to quality 

 Council is committed to aligning their own actions to the vision, mission and guiding principles 

 Council has identified priorities which are reflected in financial plans 

 Senior Management and workgroup leaders are working to align workgroup priorities with Council priorities 
reflected in the 2007 Financial Plan 

 Strategies and plans are in place to communicate priorities, goals and measures across the organization 

 Priorities and progress on objectives are publicly documented in an annual report to all stakeholders, regular 
and special council meeting 

 Council has adopted new 2007/08 Administrative Plan, which includes measures   

 
2008 LEADERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES 

• Strengthen opportunity stakeholder/partner input into strategic planning 

• Faster turnaround on strategic planning and  communication  

• Strengthen indicator to measure progress on strategic objectives 

• Communication planning, specific to various targeted audiences, will be key to advance an internal and 
external understanding of strategic direction 

• Opportunity exists to increase workgroup and individuals’ understanding of how their work supports the 
organization’s vision 

• A strengthened link between strategic plan, workgroup plans and individual development goals to enhance 
the progress already made 

• Concordance between various planning documents 

• Expenditures vetted to ensure they are assigned a priority 

  



 
 

Awards and Achievements 

 
MAYOR CALVIN KRUK AND PREMIER GORDON CAMPBELL 

 
 

  
 
On September 26, 2007, the City of Dawson 
Creek was recognized as one of BC’s most 
innovative green cities at the Union of BC 
Municipalities (UBCM) convention in 
Vancouver. 
 
Premier Gordon Campbell presented one of 
seven 2007 Green City Awards to Mayor 
Calvin Kruk. The City was recognized for its 
progressive community energy planning, 
actions taken towards conservation and the 
development of alternative sources of energy. 
The award includes a cash prize of $50.000. 
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Awards and Achievements 

 

 
 

The City also received the UBCM Best Practices Community Excellence Award for website innovation for the 
Sustainable Dawson Creek website: planningforpeople.ca. The Best Practices category recognizes a local 
government in BC that has improved or revised upon an existing program or service. 
 
The Planning for People website documents the development and implementation of the City’s green policies and 
offers information on sustainable best practices for the community. 
 
 
 
The National Quality institute awarded the City of Dawson Creek the 
Progressive Excellence Program Level II Certification in November of 
2007. This award followed an external assessment which demonstrated 
the organization has achieved wide implementation of its strategic focus 
on excellence. Key components demonstrated were in part, wide spread 
implementation in all key areas, good emphasis on improvement and 
finally good results being achieved in some key areas.  

 
 

 
2007 City of Dawson Creek Annual Report  Page 14 



Awards and Achievements 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Mayor Calvin Kruk stepped into the national spotlight in Toronto 
on November 20 to receive the Solar Leader of the Year Award 
from Canadian Solar Industry Association (CanSIA). The award is 
given annually to political leaders who provide leadership and 
vision in promoting the use of solar technologies nationally. 
 
The solar initiatives in the City of Dawson Creek recognized by 
the award include: 

• The solar hot water systems installed at City Hall and the 
Fire Hall with others planned for the RCMP station and 
the Municipal airport. 

• The City’s partnership with Northern Lights College in 
bringing forward the Energy House on the Dawson Creek 
campus that will be a showcase for environmental 
design, renewable energy training and education. 

• The City’s installation of solar powered pedestrian 
lighting. 

 

 
 
The City of Dawson Creek captured national 
recognition for its Community Energy Plan (CEP) that 
is part of its Sustainable Dawson Creek initiative.  
 
The FCM-CH2M HILL Sustainable Community Award 
was presented on Saturday, June 2 at a recognition 
ceremony held at the Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities’ (FCM) 70th Annual Conference and 
Municipal ExpoTM in Calgary.  
 
The Awards recognize municipal leadership in 
sustainable community development and give national 
recognition to projects that demonstrate 
environmental excellence and innovation in service 
delivery. 
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City of Dawson Creek  
 

2007 Annual Report 

DEPARTMENT OVERVIEWS 

www.planningforpeople.ca www.dawsoncreek.ca 



 
Administration 

 
Administration supports Council decision making by providing high quality information and advice and ensures 
implementation of Council directives. Administration is responsible for drafting policy initiatives and bylaws for 
Council’s consideration, preparation and preservation of the minutes and other City records, scheduling Council 
meetings and activities, providing assistance to standing committees and ensuring that all City actions such as Council 
proceedings, elections and land development are conducted in accordance with government legislation.   
 
The Chief Administrative Officer manages administrative operations, ensures that Council’s policies and directions are 
implemented and provides Council with advice and information on municipal operations and affairs. The Chief 
Administrative Officer reports to Council and all City staff report to the Chief Administrative Officer. The Deputy Chief 
Administrative Officer is responsible for senior staff/department heads and for personnel management including 
relations with the City’s two unions, CUPE and IAFF. Administration is also responsible for recruitment, aboriginal 
relations, health and safety, economic development, special projects and communications and media relations. 
 
2008 GOALS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
Support Council decision making by: 

• Providing quality information and advice. 
• Ensuring all Council reports follow formats and are well written and complete. 
• Continue professional development of staff providing reports to Council. 
• Provide opportunities for diverse viewpoints to be presented to Council. 
• Streamlining the Agenda process to meet deadlines.   
 

Ensure legislative requirements are met by: 
• Completing a review of all contracts and work with departments and co-ordinate the tendering process to 

ensure completion prior to expiration dates. 
• Land development procedures will be reviewed to improve communication and assist developers in a timely 

and efficient manner.    
• Prepare for and conduct a successful election through education on new procedures and consideration of the 

successes and opportunities from the previous election. 
 

Help Senior Staff reach their potential by: 
• Providing opportunities for learning and gaining experience. 
• Ensure that Department Goals and Objectives are complete. 
• Help all Department Heads develop Personnel Development Plans. 

 
Help Citizens to be fully informed about the functioning of City Hall by: 

• Ensuring all citizens have equal access to participate in City life. 
• Regularly update web pages. 
• Help all departments establish feedback mechanisms ie public surveys. 
• Improve communications to reach a wider audience. 
• Support Dawson Creek’s aboriginal community. 

 
Manage City workforce with fairness and integrity by: 

• Treating the City’s Unions with fairness and respect. 
• Ensuring that all employers are evaluated annually. 

 
Provide opportunities for City partners to succeed by: 

• Providing opportunities for community partners to participate in seminars and community consultations. 
• Ensuring that principles of inclusivity are part of all decision making. 
• Supporting measures to make facilities and employment opportunities handicapped accessible. 
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Operations Department 
The Operations Department provides efficient, effective maintenance of all aspects of the City’s infrastructure by 
focusing resources where they are most needed.  The Department also plans and implements new capital 
infrastructure and improvements as required.  In 2007, the Engineering section was busy with the construction of 
numerous capital works, including the repaving of 103rd Avenue 8th Street to west of 12th Street and 114th Avenue 15th 
Street to 16th Street. New sidewalks were constructed on McKellar Avenue from 10th Street to 13th Street and, 13th 
Street 110th Avenue to 112th Avenue. In addition, the Engineering Department continued to work with developers on 
a number of projects within the City. 
 

 
 
The Water and Environmental section of the Department provides for safe and clean potable water for City residents 
and businesses.  The Department has been undertaking significant new improvements to ensure the water quality 
exceeds all applicable standards for the City’s water source.  In support of this objective, the City has embarked upon 
the Water Quality Assurance Plan and continues to devote significant funding and resources to the implementation of 
that plan. In 2007 the project that increases pumping capacity at the Kiskatinaw river pump house was completed, as 
well as the upgraded Devereaux Booster station. The new Ultraviolet disinfection installation was completed and 
commissioned at the water treatment plant.   
 
The Public Works section runs a number of maintenance activities including the steaming and cleaning of storm 
outfalls, the snowplowing of all City streets, the maintenance of all water distribution lines, sanitary mains, and fire 
hydrants. Crews install and maintain street signs and complete cross walk painting and line marking each year. The 
Department applied 250 tonnes of salt and over 3000 tonnes of sand while crews plowed approximately 185 km of 
road per month during the winter season. The department in 2008 will be developing a road salt management plan. 
The plan will address a number of objectives relating to road salt use, including salt storage, snow disposal, and 
application near environmentally sensitive areas.  
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Operations Department 
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
To promote communication and cooperation through all sectors of the Department. 
 
To promote efficient and effective municipal spending by focusing financial and staff resources where they are needed 
most.  
 
To ensure that, as the municipality changes and grows, service delivery adapts and expands to meet the expectations 
of the customer. 
 
To continue the training and development of the Department’s key people. Encourage input from all levels. 
 
To utilize the process mapping function to review key processes and identify opportunities for improved service 
delivery. 
 
To encourage suppliers and service providers to utilize innovative and cost effective products and services. 

 
2007 HIGHLIGHTS 
 
• Initiated new snow plowing methods to deliver prompt 

service to all residents 
• Compiling linear assets to be used in capital 

infrastructure planning 
• Developed new worker orientation package specific to 

each Public Works position 
• Continued to provide training opportunities for staff in 

various fields 
• Continued to process map key functions 
• Initiated a Road Salt Management Plan to be 

completed in 2008 
 

2008 GOALS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

Ensure alignment of the strategic goals throughout the department by: 
• Posting organizational vision, mission and values 
• Ensuring crew talks include discussion on strategic direction 
• Ensure appraisals are completed 

 
Solicit feedback from stakeholders by ensuring: 

• Feedback is collected 
• There is a process in place for capturing suggestions 
• There is a process for each workgroup to solicit and discuss 

employee suggestions 
• Actions on feedback are reported 

 
Reward and recognize stakeholders for contribution to the strategic goals by ensuring: 

• They are recognized for their efforts 
• Employee recognition is given individually through appraisals 
• Creativity and innovation is embedded in appraisal tool 
• Celebrate and acknowledge worker contribution   
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Development Services 
 
The Development Services Department supports and monitors community development and regulatory services by 
providing the best possible service to our internal and external customers. 
 
Some of the services provided include: building inspection, bylaw enforcement, development and variance approvals, 
business licensing, aboriginal liaison, safety committee, parking enforcement, building maintenance, capital 
construction, tendering, planning and sustainability. 
 
As the local economy continues to boom, this department is increasingly busy providing service to Dawson Creek 
and, in the case of building inspection, to Pouce Coupe as well.  The challenge is to maintain a consistently high level 
of service as demand increases. 
 
 
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
To support and monitor community development and regulatory services by providing the best possible service to our 
internal and external customers. 
 
To continuously review our processes and identify opportunities for improvement through effective leadership, 
efficient planning and utilizing the valuable contributions of our staff and partners.  
 
To ensure maximum adherence to City policies, bylaws and objectives to ensure development occurs in a manner 
consistent with stated community direction. 

To promote a working environment where learning is encouraged, new ideas are welcome, and a friendly atmosphere 
prevails as the most productive team approach to business.  

To provide information and assistance to meet the needs of the citizens, Council, City departments, developers and 
agencies regarding the development of the City. 
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Development Services 
2007 HIGHLIGHTS 

 
• City Hall and the Fire Hall were equipped with two different types of solar hot water systems, which 

provide hot water for the building’s needs and also serve as demonstration and test sites for the use of 
these differing systems in a northern environment. 

• 138 Building Permits issued for a total of almost 56.5 million dollars in construction.  186 new dwelling 
units were created.  The largest projects were: a new hotel, an apartment building and two senior assisted 
living developments. 

• 239 new business licenses were issued, including 21 new licenses issued for oilfield related businesses. 
• Staff presented at the UBCM conference, the Building Sustainable Communities conference, the Columbia 

Institute Sustainability Forum and at the Ministry of Community Services Sustainability workshop at 
locations throughout the province.    

• Water saving low flow toilet regulations and “dark sky friendly” streetlight regulations were adopted. 
• The City was chosen to co-chair the Province’s 100,000 Solar Roofs policy task force. 

 
2008 GOALS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
To provide information and assistance to support internal and external customers while ensuring adherence to City 
policies and bylaws so that development occurs in a manner consistent with stated community objectives by: 

• Identifying who our customers are 
• Developing new ways of dispensing information 
• Reviewing bylaws to ensure clarity 

 
To continuously review our processes and identify opportunities for improvement through: 

• Effective leadership 
• Efficient planning 
• Utilizing the valuable contributions of our staff and partners 
• Internal and external surveys 
• Crew talks 
• Monthly reporting 

 
To reduce the City’s environmental footprints through development of sustainable planning and better maintenance of 
City facilities by: 

• Recycling 
• Energy audits 
• Replacing outdated electrical fixtures 
• Solar power 
• Supporting wind power 
• Working towards energy efficient building bylaws 

 
To promote an inclusive environment by the elimination of any barriers to participation in any of the City’s functions 
and activities by: 

• Maintaining and strengthening our links to First Nations and Métis populations by including all 
aboriginal and Métis groups to public workshops hosted by the City of Dawson Creek 

• Ensuring all individuals have access to services and opportunities for success by providing facilities 
that are fully accessible 

 
To provide leadership to the community by promoting an atmosphere of trust and integrity by: 

• Following through with commitments in a timely manner 
• Working to develop positive relationships 
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• Leading by example in relation to building standards and safety 



 
 

Community Sustainability Plan 
SUSTAINABILITY PLANNING PHASE III UPDATE 
 
Sustainability Baseline Review has been completed by Holland Barrs Planning Group. The results of the baseline have 
been reviewed and the following next steps have been identified.  
 
Next steps: 
 
1. Refine goal descriptions for 10 categories 
 The 10 categories presented here are a slight adaptation from those presented in the baseline to better reflect the 

specific issues that Dawson Creek wants to highlight in its sustainability planning process. Rather than using a 
community process to define the goal statements for each category, the City will use the statements from the 
sustainability baseline with refinements or adaptations where necessary. The leadership team feels that this 
approach and organization makes sense for the City, rather than going through another large process.  The 
proposed goal descriptions are as follows: 
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1. Create a compact complete community 
2. Develop an environmentally-friendly, community-oriented 

transportation system 
3. Increase energy efficiency and the use of renewable energy  
4. Use water responsibly and efficiently to ensure a clean and 

sustainable supply 
5. Enhance green space to support both community and 

ecological uses  
6. Encourage vibrant arts and culture 
7. Foster social well-being through health, housing and education 
8. Encourage participation in civic issues through an open and 

accountable municipal government 
9. Foster robust economic development that supports the 

community’s goals 
10. Increase reuse of resources and decrease waste 

 
2. Review goal descriptions with senior staff 

 Goal descriptions will be reviewed with senior staff and adapted as necessary. These will then be made available 
for public comment on the website.  
 

3. Organize existing high level plans / Identify major new initiatives 
 Once the goal descriptions have been confirmed, all existing plans will be organized under each goal 

description. Major new initiatives will be identified to fill holes. Most of this work has been completed with the 
baseline study.  
 

4. Determine indicators 
  Indicators will then be determined for each of the ten goal descriptions. 
 

5. Determine responsibilities for new initiatives 
 It is anticipated that the following new initiatives will be required: 

a. Land use charrette for new land development – to be completed by Holland Barrs. This initiative will 
be a key catalyst project, as identified by the baseline study. This project will be the main public 
engagement activity for this phase of the sustainability planning. It is anticipated that many of the 
principals and strategies identified through this process will help to inform planning decisions through 
the whole City.  

b. Economic Development Plan – Dawson Creek’s current economic development plan is out of date and 
needs to be updated to reflect the current direction of the City. 



Community Sustainability Plan 
c. Transportation Master Plan – Dawson Creek does not currently have a high level transportation plan. A 

transportation plan will be a key component of future land use planning. 
d. Cultural Master Plan 
e. Water Demand Management Plan – Dawson Creek has a single source of water supply. The Water 

Demand Management Plan will help to identify possible integrated options for sustainable supply. 
 

6. Determine review process for existing initiatives 
 As identified in the baseline, many existing initiatives and plans will need to be revised and updated to continue 

to move the City towards sustainability. A review process will need to be determined to decide on the most 
effective way to incorporate new ideas and directions into existing documents. 

 
7. Organize staff/project leader training 

 Once responsibilities have been determined for new planning and revisions, staff and project leader training will 
be organized to facilitate these processes. Key outcomes of the training process will be a clear understanding of: 
• overall sustainability goals 
• the sustainability process 
• the interconnectedness of all projects and the need for integration where possible 
• individual roles and next steps 

 
8. Coordinate efforts  

 A coordinator will need to be appointed to ensure that all efforts are progressing in a coordinated way. The 
coordinator will convene regular meetings between project leaders/key staff to ensure communication between 
projects as they are going ahead. The coordinator’s role will not be to oversee the individual projects themselves, 
but to maintain a high level awareness of key issues and areas for overlap. 
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Parks and Recreation 
Parks Department 

 
The Parks department is responsible for over 182 h (450 ac) of maintained green space within the city, providing 
coverage of parks, boulevards and facility grounds. Included in this green space are 16 parks with 10 playgrounds, 23 
sport fields, 1 skateboard park and 4 tennis courts.  
 
The operation and maintenance of two cemeteries, City 
Cemetery and Brookside Cemetery is performed by Parks staff. 
 
Trail maintenance is performed on the 4.5 km of Rotary Trail 
system which is plowed in the winter for year round access.  
 
 
Winter outdoor recreation is provided with three outdoor 
skating rinks that are created and maintained throughout the 
winter months. The outdoor speed skating oval which is used by 
the local speed skating club is available to the public for skating 
when not in use by the club. Parks crews clean snow from over 
25km of sidewalks and snow plow/removal of 11 City facility 
parking lots during the winter. 

  
Located throughout the City there are a total of twenty three sports fields consisting of soccer, slo pitch and minor ball. 
 

Parks staff maintain grounds at 5 City facilities which includes grass cutting 
and trimming, edging, fertilizing, flower bed maintenance, shrub pruning, 
and general maintenance. 
 
The City gardener is instrumental 
in keeping the Parks Department in 
line with Integrated Pest 
Management principles and 
guidelines. The City’s urban 
forestry program is continuing to 
plant new trees using best practices 
and contributing to a sustainable 
future. In 2007, there were sixty 
four trees planted in new locations 
and dead, diseased or damaged 
trees were replaced. Maintenance 
pruning is also done on mature 
trees as well as new trees. Tree 
limbs are put through a chipper 
with the resulting wood chips used 
as mulch. The compost drop off 
site continues to be well used with 
future plans to incorporate the 
composted materials in City beds.                                   
 



 
 

Parks and Recreation 
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Recreation Department 
 

The aim of the Recreation Department is to offer high 
quality service and programs possible for children, youth, 
adults and families in the community and surrounding 
area where local needs are not being met. In addition, the 
Recreation department organizes a variety of family and 
seasonal events and is responsible for registration, cash 
receipting, account billings, and facility bookings. The 
department serves as a resource for public inquiries and 
information/phone numbers of local community groups. 
Promotional materials are developed and maintained, 
including City Promotion float, and the Trade Fair booth 
design, layout, and setup. 
 

 
Recreation Facilities 

 

 

The City of Dawson Creek operates two ice arenas and 
one aquatic centre.  The Memorial Arena ice season runs 
for 8 months of the year, while the Kin Arena operates 
ice for 6 months of the year. The arenas hosted many 
events in 2007 with ice and dry floor users this year, 
including Speed Skating meets, Provincial Star Skate 
Championship, Figure Skating Carnival, Hockey 
Tournaments, Kiwanis Trade Show, Bull Riding Event, 
Graduation/Dry Grad Events, Lipizzaner Stallions, 
Summer Programs, and dry-land training.   
 

 
The Centennial Pool was closed after 40 years of 
operation and 2.7 million visits.  The new Kenn Borek 
Aquatic Centre opened in the fall of 2007 and boasts an 8 
lane lap pool, leisure pool, tot pool, hot tub, lazy river, 1 
and 3m diving boards, water slide, steam room, and 
sauna.  Hours of operation have increased from 56 hours 
per week to 63 hours per week.  It is a multi-use facility 
and patrons range from infants to senior citizens.  Many 
new registered fitness programs have been developed to 
increase active living for Dawson Creek citizens, such as 
water running, Early Morning Deep Water Aerobics, 
Water Walking, Hydro Fit and a new dry-land program 
called Osteofit.  It is our goal to ensure the facility is used 
by all residents and surrounding communities.  We want 
everyone to feel welcome and appreciated.                         
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Parks and Recreation 
2007 HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• Contribution to the Success by 6 Family Calendar Project 
• Provided the community with 3 University Level Sports Camps-University of Alberta Basketball, Simon Fraser 

University Volleyball, University of Victoria Soccer 
• Expansion of office space, increased workstations and storage  
• New and rejuvenated perennial/shrub beds  
• Implementation and documentation of Integrated Pest Management 
• Upgrades of Infrastructure Skateboard Park ‘ELoo”; installation of washroom facility at the Rotary Skate Park 
• Installation of new columbarium (48 niches) at City Cemetery 
• Installation of new toddler playground at Kitchen Park (Rec Master Plan) 
• Landscaping of grounds at Kenn Borek Aquatic Centre  
• Reclamation and enlargement of perennial/shrub beds at Welcome Hill and Kitchen Park 
• Acquired specialty sport field equipment such as top dresser and slit seeder 
• Island bed construction  
• Upgrades to annuals flower beds  
• “Capital project” coloured stamped concrete at 8th Street Boulevard 
• Closure/Celebration of 40 year old building – Centennial Pool 
• Opening of Kenn Borek Aquatic Centre 
• Renovations to the Memorial Arena dressing room, change room, bath room 
• Implement staff checklist orientation 
• Trained and implemented AED Certification 
• Arenas hosted the Provincial Star Skate Competition 

 
Stats & Facts: 
  

• Centennial Pool 2007 attendance 43,508 compared 
to 39,290 in 2006 – 10.7% increase 

• Kenn Borek Aquatic Centre 2007 attendance 
32,301 (September through December) 

• Total attendance 75,809 compared to 52,592 in 
2006.  A 44.1% increase 

• Brookside Cemetery Interments and Inurnments  
 Full burial: 17  Cremation in ground: 10 
• City Cemetery Interments and Inurnments 

Full Burial:  7 Cremation in ground: 25      
 Cremation in Columbarium: 13 

 
 
2008 GOALS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

• Implementation of online registration  
• Involvement/hosting of the Northern BC Winter Games 
• Continued program expansion at Multiplex/Rec Infrastructure 
• Additional capital for the enhancement of Parks 
• Team Development  “Gung Ho” 
• Working towards phase two or next step of the Health and wellness initiative,  Active Communities 



 
 

Excellence and Personnel Development 
 
STRATEGIC FOCUS 
The City of Dawson Creek is already well respected and is a good organization but is eager 
to widen the understanding of its approach to excellence in line with the National Quality 
Institutes criteria.   The Peace XL Program supports the City of Dawson Creek’s 
commitment for strategic approach to excellence, promotes good management principles 
and practices across the organization and   commitment to continuous improvement. 
 
Council further strengthened the organizations commitment to quality by highlighting 
excellence in the new Vision, Mission and Guiding Principles statements adopted at the 
close of 2006.  
 
Under strong leadership from Council we are well on our way to achieve some remarkable goals in the areas of good 
governance which support; alignment to the new Vision, Mission and Guiding Principles, Community Planning and 
Sustainability.  
 
2007 HIGHLIGHTS 
In November 2007 an external verification team determined the City of Dawson Creek has met and exceeded the 
National Quality Institutes Level II criteria.  
 
Assessment has given the City of Dawson Creek: 

• an method to assess the organization against a criteria for achieving excellence 
• a diagnostic tool designed to evaluate organizational performance 

 
The Purpose of the Assessment is to: 

• assist the organization to evolve and sustain strategic improvement 
• to confirm strengths 
• outline opportunities linked to strategic intent, which focus on continuous improvement 

 
The Outcome realized: 

• to provide valuable input to the strategic/operational planning process 
• improvement initiatives can be more strategically aligned to issues and priorities identified in the operation 

business plans to maximize benefits 
  
2007 GOALS ACHIEVED: 

• Training which focused on principles of excellence 
and quality drivers was offered 

• Engagement initiatives  supported 
creativity/innovation/collaboration 

• Contribution of partners/stakeholders was encouraged 
• Established opportunities for involvement in 

improvement planning 
• Increased alignment with vision, mission and guiding 

principles 
• Process management was used as a tool to improve 

cross function communication 
• HR planning was supported  
• Performance measurements were used and 

communicated 
• Awareness of specific goals, objectives and performance measures was increased 
• Orientation process is enhanced and streamlined 
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Excellence and Personnel Development 
 
2008 GOALS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Fresh from receiving Level II recognition, the City of Dawson Creek the Excellence and Personnel quality initiative will 
work with senior leaders, senior managers and front line staff to support: 

• Continuous learning and people involvement 
• Leadership through involvement 
• Focus on customers and stakeholders 
• Cooperation and teamwork 
• Prevention based process management 
• Factual approach to decision making 
• Continuous learning and people involvement 
• Focus on continuous improvement and breakthrough thinking 
• Fulfill obligations to all stakeholders and society 

 
2008/09 QUALITY PLAN  
Aligned with the City's Vision and Mission and Quality Mandate, the 2008 Quality Initiative Service Plan supports 
continued improvement and organizational excellence. Including but not limited to: 

• Improvement planning where opportunities were identified.   
• Local government training for Dawson Creek and region. 
• Strategic focus on excellence, promoting good management, principles & practices. 
• Engage staff in ways that support creativity/innovation. 
• Provide opportunity at all levels for involvement in improvement planning. 
• Promote understanding and alignment to vision, mission & guiding principles. 
• Support environment that encourages learning/new ideas. 
• Ensure staff have skills to effectively carry out their work.   

 
Build on Strengths & Opportunities identified in the 2007 external assessment: 

• Formalized process on client feedback (measures & trending) 
• Track ideas based on: improvement impact, cost effectiveness (plus method to communicate results from 

ideas implemented) 
• Stronger method for monitoring/measuring processes 
• More established approach to revisit/review plans  
• Move towards Progressive Level III Application 
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Dawson Creek Regional Airport 
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The Dawson Creek Regional Airport is managed by Taygus 
Management Ltd.  The airport provides facilities for regularly 
scheduled passenger, corporate, private, air ambulance, courier 
and military aircraft.  Central Mountain Air continued to service 
the airport during 2007. The Itinerant aircraft movements continue 
to be high due primarily to the increased activity in the oil and gas 
industry.  Passenger movements increased this year and it is 
expected this trend will continue.  
 

In 2007 there were a total of 14,296 with an estimated 3,600 additional rig crew changes on charter aircraft compared 
to the total of 11,830 passengers that moved through the airport in 2006. In 2007 there were 10,330 aircraft 
movements through the airport. 
 
Dawson Creek Regional Airport has a crew of 2 trained airfield specialists. The airport is mandated through Federal, 
Provincial and Municipal regulations and by laws to maintain a safe, secure and efficient operation. 
 
Programs administered are Safety, Security, Bird and Wildlife Plan, Vehicle Control, Airside Access Control, Winter 
and Summer Maintenance, Apron Control, Terminal Services, Foreign Object Debris/Damage, Aviation Fuel 
Monitoring Program. 

 
2007 HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Safety and Security are always our priority at Dawson Creek Regional Airport. We had no reported incidents related to 
Safety or Security in 2007. 
 
Our new sand storage shed was completed in 2007. The facility provides warm and dry sand for use on the aircraft 
movement areas when adverse weather conditions hamper our ability to maintain bare and dry pavement. The facility 
was 100% funded through Transport Canada’s Airports Capital Assistance Program (ACAP) No capital funding was 
allotted to the airport by the City in 2007. 
 
The Dawson Creek Regional Airport continues to meet the regulatory requirements of the Federal, Provincial and 
Municipal governments. The airport continued to provide 1st class service to the users in 2007. 
 
The 2007/08 winter season has seen no airport closures due to facility condition ie: runway icing or snow 
accumulation. The very few missed approaches or aborted landings were due to weather conditions such as fog and 
heavy snow fall which affected visibility. 
 
Training and upgrading continues to be a high priority and an ongoing process. Continued changing and growing 
regulation requires our staff to keep up with those requirements. 
 
2008 GOALS  
 

• To provide a safe, secure and efficient airport for airport tenants and traveling public. 
• To identify capital needs. To pursue Federal and Provincial capital assistance funding. 
• To meet all Federal, Provincial and Municipal Regulations as they pertain to airport operations. 
• To continue to put the comfort of the travelling public as a high priority by providing a 1st class terminal 

facility and responding to all suggestions and concerns. 
• To continue to provide a high quality airside facility by providing the high standard of service as outlined in 

our snow action plan. 
• Continue Regulations training and mentoring to the standard required to meet our objectives.  

 



 
 

Fire Services 

 

 
The City Fire Department provides a number of services to the City and to the fire 
protection area outside the city limits. With a permanent crew of 17 and an 
auxiliary complement of 12 commanded by a Fire Chief and a Deputy Fire Chief 
the Fire Department provides prevention, education and suppression services, plus 
in-service inspections of City businesses including those required for the issuance 
of new business licenses.  The Fire Department provides response to motor vehicle 
incidents in the South Peace Region. It is also responsible for providing in-service 
training to both career staff and auxiliary members. 

 

 
 

The Fire Department liaises with the Office of the Fire 
Commissioners on issues of fire safety and fire cause 
investigation.  The Department is responsible for the issuing of 
burn permits for burning activities within the City.  The 
department monitors a number of fire and security alarms 
throughout the City and provides mutual aid responses to fire 
departments within the adjacent proximity of the City. 

 

 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
The Fire Department’s primary goal is to provide effective fire prevention, protection and public safety services to all 
of the communities’ citizens. These services are designed to protect lives and property of from the adverse effects of 
fires or exposure to dangerous conditions. 
 
To plan for and provide for an efficient and effective response within the City limits and to manage operational 
guidelines to meet the primary mission goals of protecting lives and property.   
 
To manage non-emergency requests for assistance from the public and the City within operational guidelines. 
 
To proactively diminish the potential for injury and monetary loss from fire and minimize fire hazards by increasing 
public awareness through distribution of information and public education. 
 
To prepare and maintain career and auxiliary personnel with the necessary skills for delivering quality service to the 
citizens by establishing performance, training and safety standards acceptable to the fire industry and the City.  
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Fire Services 
2007 HIGHLIGHTS 

 
• Continuance of enhanced and diversified training for career fire fighters 
• Enrolment of fire fighters in the Fire Officer program to NFPA 1021 level 
• Continuing and improving the training program for the auxiliary fire fighters 
• 15% increase in training hours  
• Reduced average response time of apparatus and staff 
• Conducted 14 fire station tours for elementary and pre-school students 
• Conducted 7 classroom tours at elementary and secondary schools 
• Increased the firefighter public presence with school visits and  site tours for tactical pre-plans 
 

      
 

 
2008 GOALS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
• Increase officer level training 
• Increase training for entry level firefighters 
• Review all operational guidelines and rewrite if necessary 
• Improve the response time to reflect industry standards  
• Work with building owners to ensure fire codes are followed 
• Review the fire services bylaw and update as necessary 
• Increase staff levels to ensure adequate response times  
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RCMP 
 

The City of Dawson Creek Detachment of the RCMP is administered and funded primarily by 
the City of Dawson Creek.  Seventy percent of funding, and the majority of members of the 
RCMP and civilian staff members are paid by the municipality. The Province provides funding 
for a limited number of personnel, and the Detachment is responsible for police services to the 
Region beyond the municipality as well. 
 
The Detachment’s long term strategic priorities have been to reduce the impact of organized 
crime and drugs on the community, reduce the number of serious accidents due to impaired 

driving and motor vehicle offences, provide young persons with the information required to make good choices 
concerning lifestyles, and enhance the relationship between members of the Detachment and the Métis and 
Aboriginal communities within, and outside of, Dawson Creek. 
 
Strategic Planning is an ongoing commitment made within the Royal Canadian Mounted Police in which goals and 
objectives are established through consultation with staff, business partners, social service agencies, schools, and 
members of the public. These goals were arrived upon through this planning process during the spring of 2007, and 
will continue to adjust as policing and community challenges, evolve. 

 
2007 HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The 2006-2007 Strategic Plan focused on five initiatives:  
 

• Reducing the impact of organized crime and drugs in the 
community. 

• Enhancing traffic safety. 
• Providing a more effective and enhanced service and 

commitment to youth. 
• Enhancing service to our rural clients, First Nations peoples, 

and Métis communities in and outside of Dawson Creek. 
• Improve the level of safety in the downtown core. 

 
In November 2007, Dawson Creek received its first dedicated drug 
enforcement member, a second position is expected to be funded and in 
place sometime in 2008. In the past year, Dawson Creek Detachment 
has removed approximately $500,000 in illegal drugs from the 
community, as well as tens of thousands in cash and other criminal 
proceeds. 
 
In 2007, the police doubled drug charges, impaired driving offence 
charges, bar walks and motor vehicle act offences in the City from the 
previous year. A limited bike patrol in the downtown core was 
reintroduced.  
 
School safety plans are underway in several area schools. The goal being to complete this process in 2008.  
 
The Dawson Creek Detachment was very active in community events throughout the year. This included the largest 
mounted and marching contingent in the Fall Fair in many years. Dawson Creek Detachment members were present 
at virtually every major public event in the City in the past year. Members were also provided a variety of services 
including serving seasonal (Thanksgiving and Christmas) meals at the Nawican Friendship Centre. 
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RCMP 
 
2008 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
To reduce the impact of organized crime and drugs through active, targeted enforcement directed against traffickers 
and their agents. In partnership with the City of Dawson Creek, this will also entail energetic efforts to close 
establishments, whether residential or commercial, where drugs are sold. 
 
To enhance enforcement capabilities through training in such fields as source handling, search warrants and 
intelligence gathering. 
 
Through an active partnership with South Peace Traffic Services, actively enforce traffic safety laws and reduce 
impaired driving, to the purpose of reducing the number of fatalities and serious injuries upon City and intersecting 
Provincial roadways. 
 
To enhance the safety of every student within Dawson Creek’s schools by developing school safety plans, 
participating in drills and providing technical support and expertise for these initiatives. 
 
Participating in drug awareness programs at area schools, including the delivery of the DARE Program. 
 
Building a positive relationship with the City of Dawson Creek’s First Nations peoples. 
 
Reduce the impact of criminal activity in the downtown core. 

 
2008-2009 STRATEGIC PLAN 

 
1. Reducing the impact of organized crime and drugs in the community. 
2. Enhancing traffic safety. 
3. Providing a more effective and enhanced service and commitment to youth. 
4. Enhancing service to our rural clients, First Nations peoples, and Métis communities in and outside 

of Dawson Creek. 
5. Improve the level of safety in the downtown core. 

 

 



 
 

Financial Services 
 
The Finance Department manages the financial transactions for the City.  The Community Charter assigns statutory 
responsibility to the Chief Financial Officer for this function.  The Department ensures that all monies received and 
bills paid are recorded accurately and that all reporting requirements are fulfilled.  The Department’s goal is to 
provide accurate and timely information so that Council can make informed decisions when necessary and to 
manage and plan the organizations day to day financial business with efficiency and integrity.   

 
 

In 2007, the Department continued to focus on improving the 
reporting function to both internal and external customers.  
Extensive work was completed on a comprehensive review of 
the fees and charges as they relate to the various City services. A 
new capital budget tool was implemented to improve the capital 
budgeting process. Various forms used in the payroll process 
were improved to provide greater efficiency. Cross training was 
provided in all areas of the department to improve the reporting 
structure and the yearend and budgeting processes. Some of the 
specific functions the Finance Department undertakes also 
include maintaining property tax assessment roll information, 
establishing annual municipal tax rates, preparing the annual 
capital and operating budgets and the five year capital and 
operating plans.   

 
 
2007 HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• Accurate and timely information was provided 
so that Council and other Stakeholders could 
make informed decisions. 

• Financial procedures and internal controls were 
improved through continuous work on process 
mapping and documentation of process 
improvements. 

• Team building was developed through 
communication and implementation of regular 
departmental meetings. 
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• There was ongoing training and professional 
development for staff. 

• Improved internal and external reports were 
distributed on a timely basis. 

• Goals were reviewed and assessment on 
achievements documented. 



 
 

Financial Services 
2008 GOALS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
  
As the organization focuses on alignment with the strategic direction, new vision, mission and guiding 
principles, finance will work to:  

 
 Communicate strategic direction to stakeholders 
 Solicit feedback from stakeholders 
 Recognize and celebrate contributions to the strategic goals 
 Align department goals and objectives with strategic goals 
 Model behaviour to support new vision, mission and guiding principles 
 Work on the implementation of a City wide Tangible Capital Asset review required for PS3150 

compliance 
 Begin a review of the City’s purchasing processes and policies 
 Complete the review of the waste management function 

 
The corporation's day to day financial business is managed with efficiency and integrity. 
Indicators will include, but not be limited to the following: 

 
 Specific SMART goals are aligned with vision mission and guiding principles. 
 Specific goals, objectives and performance measures are communicated to stakeholders. 
 Process mapping is used to improve cross function communication and process management. 
 Complete performance measurements and communication on improvement initiatives. 
 Engagement that supports creativity/innovation/collaboration and opportunities of contribution with 

partners/stakeholders.  
 Feedback and suggestions are tracked and acted upon. 
 Requests or inquiries are responded to in a timely manner. 
 Auditors report confirms that City's finances are not materially misstated. 
 Active participation in training that incorporates principles of excellence. 
 Opportunities for involvement in improvement planning are built and promoted. 
 Action on feedback is reported including recognition.  
 Appraisal and development plans are in place for each staff member.  
 Regular staff meetings are conducted to review feedback, improvement initiatives and progress on 

objectives. 
 Orientation process is enhanced and streamlined.  
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Statement of 2007 Property Tax Exemptions 
 

 
In accordance with Section 98(2)(b) of the Community Charter, the following properties in the City of Dawson Creek 

were provided permissive property tax exemptions. 
 

REGISTERED OWNER 
EXEMPT 

PROPERTY 
TAXES 

  
Lot 1, Plan PGP 36955 (Alaska Highway)   
Registered Owner: Dawson Creek Athletic Association (Centennial Recreation Centre) 18,015.21  
Roll 5598.000   
    
Lot 3, Plan 21635 (2100 Hart Highway)   
Registered Owner: Dawson Creek Athletic Association (Golf Course) 8,426.39  
Roll 4392.000   
    
Parcel A, Plan 26918 (2121 Alaska Highway)   
Registered Owner: Dawson Creek Athletic Association (Golf Course) 49,225.79  
Roll 5000.000   
    
Lot 1, Block 15, Plan 26496 (900 Alaska Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Dawson Creek Historical Society (NAR Park Station) 4,357.78  
Roll 4925.010   
    
Lot 2, Block 1, Plan 2958 Except Plan 6941 (1320 102 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Nawican Friendship Centre 4,602.56  
Roll 395.000   
    
Lot 4, Block 17, Plan 2678 (912 105 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Roman Catholic Episcopal Corporation of Prince Rupert 486.11  
Roll 337.000   
    
Lot 5, Block 17, Plan 2678 (916 105 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Roman Catholic Episcopal Corporation of Prince Rupert 486.11  
Roll 338.000   
    
Parcel A (PJ 45809), Block 17, Plan 2678 (913 104 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Roman Catholic Episcopal Corporation of Prince Rupert 720.55  
Roll 340.500   
    
Lot 5, Block 1, Plan 2285 (10717 13 Street)   
Registered Owner: Rotary Harbour Society 13,994.22  
Roll 235.000   
    
Lot N 1/2 6, Block 1, Plan 2285 (10721 13 Street)   
Registered Owner: Rotary Harbour Society 187.43  
Roll 236.000   
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Statement of 2007 Property Tax Exemptions 

 
REGISTERED OWNER 

EXEMPT 
PROPERTY 

TAXES 
  
Lot S 1/2 6, Block 1, Plan 2285 (10723 13 Street)   
Registered Owner: Rotary Harbour Society 187.43  
Roll 237.000   
    
Lot 2, Plan 25965 (9001 10 Street)   
Registered Owner: South Peace Child Development Society 20,103.01  
Roll 4860.050   
    
Portion of Parcel A, Plan 8801 (10110 13 Street)   
Registered Owner: South Peace Community Resources Society 6,343.60  
Roll 3523.020   
    
Block C except Plan 28034, Plan 12537 (1101 McKellar Avenue)   
Lessee:  South Peace Senior Citizen's Association (Recreation Hall) 4,742.41  
Roll 4202.000   
    
Lot 10, Block 2, Plan 7219 (637 114 Avenue)   
The British Columbia Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 1,282.51  
Roll 2330.000   
    
Lot 14, Plan 28275 (65 Collins Road)   
Registered Owner: The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek (Lessee: South Peace Motor 
Sports Association) 730.89  
Roll 5320.300   
    
Lot 15, Plan 28275 (61 Collins Road)   
Registered Owner: The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek (Lessee: South Peace Motor 
Sports Association) 986.02  
Roll 5320.400   
    
Lot 16, Plan 28275 (57 Collins Road)   
Registered Owner: The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek (Lessee: South Peace Motor 
Sports Association) 1,706.57  
Roll 5320.500   
    
Lot 17, Plan 28275 (53 Collins Road)   
Registered Owner: The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek (Lessee: South Peace Motor 
Sports Association) 1,516.95  
Roll 5320.600   
    
Lot 17, Block 11, Plan 2244 (1019 103 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: The Governing Council of the Salvation Army in Canada 3,071.82  
Roll 209.000   

 

 
2007 City of Dawson Creek Annual Report  Page 37 



Statement of 2007 Property Tax Exemptions 

REGISTERED OWNER 
EXEMPT 

PROPERTY 
TAXES 

  
Lot 18, Block 11, Plan 2244 (1021 103 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: The Salvation Army BC North & Yukon Territory Division 3,640.68  
Roll 210.000   
    
Lots 20 & 21, Block 11, Plan 2244 (1029 103 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Anglican Synod Diocese of Caledonia 414.48  
Roll 212.000   
    
Parcel A (E013110) of Lot 17 and Amended Lot 18 (87041M), Block 3, Plan 7613  
(1800 109 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: B.C. Conference of the Mennonite Brethren Churches 187.96  
Roll 2542.000   
    
Parcel Z, Block 2, Plan 10954 (1400 113 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Baptist Union of Western Canada 213.26  
Roll 4020.000   
    
Lot 1, Plan 25965 (9009 10 Street)   
Registered Owner: Christian & Missionary Alliance Canadian Pacific District 614.49  
Roll 4860.000   
    
Parcel A, Plan 8288 (429 & 433 95 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Church of the Nazarene 573.52  
Roll 3172.000   
    
Lot 1, Plan 2641 (1224 103 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Dawson Creek Community Church and Missionary Society 298.81  
Roll 282.000   
    
Parcel A (P2223) Block 7, Plan 7887 (9013 8 Street)   

Registered Owner: General Church of the New Jerusalem in Dawson Creek, British Columbia 565.09  
Roll 3110.000   
    
Lot 8, Block 5, Plan 2490 (1436 104 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Governing Council of Salvation Army Canada West 407.25  
Roll 265.000   
    
Lot 1, Plan BCP30054 (11101 17 Street)   
Registered Owner: Grace Lutheran Church of Dawson Church 1,180.78  
Roll 4465.100   
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REGISTERED OWNER 
EXEMPT 

PROPERTY 
TAXES 

  
Lot 1 & 2, Block 3, Plan 7090 (900 & 904 94 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Grandview Chapel 410.86  
Rolls 2082.000 & 2083.000 357.05  
    
Lot 1, Plan 25167 Except Plan 27495 (11501 17 Street)   
Registered Owner: Pentecostal Assemblies of Canada 728.95  
Roll 4497.500   
    
Lot 1, Plan PGP 45251 (10901 13 Street)   
Registered Owner: President of Lethbridge Stake (Mormon) 673.53  
Roll 5607.000   
  
Lot A, Plan PGP37015 (925 104 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Roman Catholic Episcopal Corporation of Prince Rupert 5,740.27  
Roll 5598.400   
    
Lot 2, Plan 20730 (1501 108 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: St. James Presbyterian  263.87  
Roll 4367.000   
    
Parcel A, Block 4, Plan 7752 (905 Cornwall Crescent)   
Registered Owner: St. Paul's Evangelical Lutheran Cong. Holding Society 536.17  
Roll 2917.000   
    
Lot 1, Plan 30815 (9201 14 Street)   
Registered Owner: The BC Corporation of the Seventh Day Adventist Church 542.20  
Roll 5550.000   
    
Lot 6, Plan 4850 (10221 18 Street)   
Registered Owner: Trustees of the Congregation of Dawson Creek Corner Stone Christian Assembly 337.37 
Roll 1286.000   
    
Lot 6, Block 4, Plan 2285 (1300 104 Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Trustees of the Congregation of the South Peace United Church.  Executor, 
Trustee or Administrator 584.37  
Roll 251.000   
    
Lots 4-7, Block 4, Plan 5526 (640 105A Avenue)   
Registered Owner: Trustees of the Willowbrook Congregation of Jehovah's Witnesses 220.49  
Roll 1431.000   
    
Lot 6, Block 1, Plan 3114 (701 96A Avenue)   
Registered Owner: United Pentecostal Church 319.29  
Roll 828.000  

Statement of 2007 Property Tax Exemptions 
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2007 2006
Financial Assets (restated)

Cash (Note 2) 7,132,773$        2,509,066$        
Receivables (Note 3) 3,795,073          4,437,039          
Inventory of property held for resale  (Note 4) -                         -                         
Municipal finance authority deposits and demand notes (Note 5) 1,885,980          1,222,454          

12,813,826        8,168,559          
Liabilities

Temporary borrowing (Note 6) 545,152             2,039,037          
Short term capital borrowing (Note 6) 114,500             206,000             
Payables (Note 7) 4,117,440          4,446,767          
Accrued interest on long term debt 284,184             171,623             
Deferred revenue 83,328               56,302               
Municipal finance authority debt reserve (Note 5) 1,885,980          1,222,454          
Long term debt (Note 8) 28,638,089        15,348,218        

35,668,673        23,490,401        

Net Financial Assets (22,854,847)       (15,321,842)       

Physical Assets
Prepaid expenses 61,674               7,321                 
Inventory of supplies held for consumption 249,793             233,685             
Physical capital assets (Note 9) 191,038,900      173,842,391      

191,350,367      174,083,397      

Net Municipal Position 168,495,520$    158,761,555$    
 
Municipal Position

         Fund Balances
Operating Funds (Schedule 1) 4,315,315$        2,642,365$        
Capital Funds (Schedule 2) 4,098,745          2,970,883          
Reserve Funds (Schedule 3) 619,689             418,338             
Cemetery Funds (Schedule 4) 241,707             236,279             

9,275,456          6,267,865          

         Equity in Physical Capital Assets (Schedule 5) 159,220,064      152,493,690      

Municipal Position 168,495,520$    158,761,555$    

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

         Approved by:

         ____________________________
         Shelly Woolf, B. Mgmt., C.A.
         Chief Financial Officer

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2007
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2007 2007 2006
Actual Budget Actual

(unaudited) (restated)
Revenue

Net municipal property taxes (Note 10) 10,892,740$         10,823,294$         9,874,048$           
Grants in lieu of taxes 429,734                383,757                380,592                
Sale of services 4,010,744             3,379,939             3,783,604             
Other revenue from own sources 2,037,720             2,078,756             2,510,033             
Government transfers (Note 11) 11,212,376           12,297,018           11,434,022           
Return on investments 597,910                157,767                739,138                
Land sales 1,041,196             -                            -                            
Tax sale property land sales -                            -                            132,362                
Utility fees 3,117,329             2,992,580             3,017,689             
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 9,650                    -                            31,000                  

33,349,399           32,113,111           31,902,488           

Expenditures
General government services 2,723,636             2,953,031             3,131,360             
Protective services 5,393,417             5,775,835             5,060,311             
Transportation services 3,001,583             3,072,571             3,145,158             
Air transport 1,110,497             904,756                1,088,134             
Environmental waste services 972,639                1,042,984             920,763                
Public health and welfare 144,431                154,778                113,068                
Environmental development services 1,382,551             1,510,649             865,164                
Recreational and cultural services 5,302,044             5,563,306             4,879,785             
Long term debt charges 1,441,158             1,523,533             1,292,953             
Water and sewer utility charges 2,369,780             2,816,756             2,517,556             

23,841,736           25,318,199           23,014,252           

Excess of Revenue over Expenditures 9,507,663             6,794,912             8,888,236             

Less: Temporary borrowing principal repayment (5,458,430)            -                            -                            
Equity adjustment (1,234,353)            -                            -                            
Debt principal repayment (1,245,493)            (1,375,440)            (1,289,491)            
Capital purchases (17,271,403)          (21,160,374)          (23,102,697)          

(25,209,679)          (22,535,814)          (24,392,188)          
Add:

Proceeds from debenture debt, net 14,745,072           11,634,420           -                            
Proceeds from temporary borrowing, net 3,964,535             -                            2,039,037             

18,709,607           11,634,420           2,039,037             

Change in Fund Balances 3,007,591             (4,106,482)            (13,464,915)          

Fund Balances, as previously reported 6,267,865             6,743,618             20,208,533           

Prior period adjustment (Note 13) -                            -                            (475,753)               
Fund Balances, as restated 6,267,865             6,743,618             19,732,780           

Fund Balances, end of year 9,275,456$           2,637,136$           6,267,865$           
 
Operating fund 4,315,315$          1,687,366$           2,642,365$          
Capital fund 4,098,745             630,408                2,970,883             
Reserve fund 619,689                83,083                  418,338                
Cemetery fund 241,707                236,279                236,279                

9,275,456$          2,637,136$           6,267,865$          

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

DECEMBER 31, 2007
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2007 2006
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures 9,507,663$        8,888,236$        

Add non-cash item:
    Actuarial adjustment (301,206)            (365,031)            

9,206,457          8,523,205          

Decrease (Increase)  in receivables 641,965             (370,592)            
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses (54,352)              5,707                 
(Decrease) in payables (216,766)            (1,949,249)         
Increase (Decrease) in deferred revenue 27,026               (142,998)            

                         Net Cash from Operations 9,604,330          6,066,073          

Financing Activities
Temporary borrowing proceeds 3,964,545          2,039,037          
Temporary borrowing payments (5,458,430)         -                         
Debenture debt proceeds 14,745,072        210,848             
Short term borrowing principal repayment (91,500)              (91,500)              
Debenture debt principal repayment (1,153,993)         (1,197,991)         

                         Net Cash from Financing 12,005,694        960,394             

Investing Activities
Change in equity funds, net 226,300             (21,414)              
Increase in inventory of supplies held for consumption (16,108)              (2,713)                
Acquisition of capital assets (17,271,403)       (23,102,698)       
Disposal of capital assets, at cost 74,894               270,322             

                         Net Cash from Investing (16,986,317)       (22,856,503)       

Change in Cash and Investments 4,623,707          (15,830,036)       

Cash and Investments, beginning of year 2,509,066          18,339,102        

Cash and Investments, end of year 7,132,773$        2,509,066$        

Cash, bank indebtedness and short term capital borrowing consist of the following:
Petty Cash 2,090$               1,450$               
Bank 1,089,850          -                         
Reserve deposits 6,040,833          3,625,500          
Bank indebtedness -                         (1,117,884)         

7,132,773$        2,509,066$        

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

DECEMBER 31, 2007
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General

1  Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Presentation

Previous years amounts have been restated to conform to the current year's presentation.

b) Financial Instruments

c) Use of Estimates

d) Reporting Entity

The City follows the fund basis of accounting. Funds are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.  Currently in use are:
1) General Revenue Funds - to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The
General Revenue Fund is the corporation's operating fund including collection of taxation, administering operations, roads, policing,
fire protection, etc.

2)  Capital Funds - to account for all capital assets of the corporation and offset by long term debt and investment in capital assets.

The City's financial instruments consist of cash, receivables, MFA deposits, bank indebtedness, temporary borrowing, short term
capital borrowing, payables and long-term debt. Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the City is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments
approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

4) Cemetery Funds - to account for perpetual care of City operated cemeteries in accordance with the Cemetery Act of British
Columbia.

3) Reserve Funds - to account for the activities in reserves established for specific purposes by bylaw or the Local Government Act.
The use of each reserve is governed by it's own bylaw or the Local Government Act.

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures, changes in fund balances and
changes in financial position of the reporting entity, being The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek.  

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

The City of Dawson Creek is incorporated under the provisions of the British Columbia Local Government Act. Its principle activities
include the provision of local government services to the residents of the incorporated area.

The consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek are the representations of management and
conform to Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to British Columbia municipalities. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with local government accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting and Auditing
Standards Board (PSAAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.  The significant accounting policies are as follows:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting practices generally accepted in Canada. In
preparing these financial statements management has made estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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e) Basis of Accounting

f) Government Transfers

g) Investments

Investments are stated at cost.

h) Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

i) Physical Capital Assets

Physical capital assets are stated at cost.  Amortization is not recorded.

j) Reserve for Future Expenditures

k) Equity in Physical Capital Assets

l) Budget Presentation

Government contributions for the acquisition of physical assets are reported as capital revenue and do not reduce the related
physical asset costs.

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period that the events giving rise to the transfer
occurred, providing all eligibility criteria has been met by the Municipality, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.

DECEMBER 31, 2007

The basis of accounting followed in the financial statement presentation includes revenues recognized in the period in which the
transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the revenues, and expenditures recognized in the period the goods and services
are acquired and a liability is incurred or transfers are due.

Periodically Council sets aside a portion of general operating surplus, called the Reserve for Future Expenditures, to fund future
operating and capital expenditures.

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The budget approved in May 2007 is presented in the financial statements, any subsequent amendments have not been included.

Equity in Physical Capital Assets represents The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek's net investment in capital assets, after
deducting the portion financed by long term debt.
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2  Cash 

2007 2006
   Unrestricted Cash 
                      Bank 1,089,850$        (1,117,884)$        
                      Petty cash                 2,090                   1,450 
   Internally Restricted Cash 
                       Bank          5,799,126            3,389,221 
   Externally Restricted Cash 
                       Bank              241,707               236,279 

   Total Cash  $        7,132,773  $        2,509,066 

3  Receivables

2007 2006

   Trade and other receivables
                       Federal Government $            46,860  $        1,130,222 
                       Provincial Government             769,375               439,378 
                       General          1,400,565               925,587 
   Capital lease             205,449               207,207 
   Property taxes             944,586            1,336,513 
   Utilities              428,238               398,132 

 $        3,795,073  $        4,437,039 

4  Inventory of property held for resale  

Opening Additions Disposals Balance Balance
Balance at cost 2007 2006

Property acquired for taxes
  subject to redemption 458,671$                             94,250$           458,671$      94,250$             458,671$            
Tax property not subject
  to redemption 127,932                               396,524           8,255            516,201             127,932              
Unsold land 229,110                               -                       -                    229,110             229,110              
Allowance for loss (815,713)                              (490,774)          (466,926)       (839,561)            (815,713)            

-$                                         -$                     -$                  -$                       -$                       

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

The City obtained tax sale properties in 2007 through non-redemption of taxes. This property was added to the "Land Inventory Held for
Resale" category.  Proceeds on the sale of the non-redeemed tax sale property will be placed into a tax sale reserve fund.
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5  Municipal Finance Authority Reserve Deposits and Demand Notes

The details of the cash deposits and demand notes are as follows:

Cash Demand Total Total
Deposits Notes 2007 2006

   General Fund Operations 205,042$         808,820$      1,013,862$        464,610$            
   Water Fund Operations 250,477           564,423        814,900             686,182              
   Sewer Fund Operations 18,467             38,751          57,218               71,662                

473,986$         1,411,994$   1,885,980$        1,222,454$         

6  Temporary capital borrowing

2007 2006

Temporary capital borrowing consists of the following:
Temporary borrowing 545,152$           2,039,037$         
Short term borrowing 114,500             206,000              

659,652$           2,245,037$         

2008 91,500$             
2009 23,000               

7  Payables

2007 2006

   Trade and other payables
                       Federal Government $          703,903  $           578,456 
                       Provincial Government                         -                 17,763 
                       General          2,524,153            2,471,754 
   Capital              889,384            1,378,794 

 $        4,117,440  $        4,446,767 

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority. As a condition of these borrowings, a portion of the
debenture proceeds are withheld by the Municipal Finance Authority as a debt reserve fund. The City also executes demand notes in
conjunction with each debenture whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the Municipal Finance Authority.

Temporary capital borrowing consists of funding borrowed from the Municipal Finance Authority on a short term basis. These borrowings
will be converted into debenture debt in 2008. The variable interest rate at December 31, 2007 was 4.985 %.

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

Short term borrowing represents borrowings from the Toronto Dominion bank at a fixed interest rate of 5.25 %. Principle installments are
as follows:
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8  Long Term Debt

City Purpose Issued Redeemed Outstanding Outstanding
Bylaw # 2007 2006

General
3296 Local improvements 620,000$         543,531$      76,469$             149,296$            
3420 Local improvements 320,000           242,943        77,057               112,855              
3497 Local improvements 238,500           154,387        84,113               109,523              
3543 Local improvements 954,500           419,324        535,176             627,417              
3573 Local improvements 1,594,000        700,265        893,735             1,047,776           
3647 Local improvements 1,280,000        438,624        841,376             959,184              
3559 Local improvements 40,000             6,797            33,203               36,668                
3562 Local improvements 69,900             11,877          58,023               64,078                
3685 Local area service 45,000             7,646            37,354               41,252                
3715 Local area service 45,000             7,646            37,354               41,252                
3716 Local area service 70,000             11,894          58,106               64,170                
3722 Local area service 250,000           42,478          207,522             229,177              
3733 Capital Works 919,695           156,269        763,426             843,093              
3799 Local area service 25,350             4,307            21,043               23,239                
3800 Local area service 23,485             3,990            19,495               21,529                
3805 Local area service 56,375             9,579            46,796               51,680                
3801 Local area service 4,983               415               4,568                 4,983                 
3803 Local area service 1,671               139               1,532                 1,671                 
3804 Local area service 29,179             2,430            26,749               29,179                
3807 Local area service 175,015           14,577          160,438             175,015              
3852 Local area service 82,915             -                    82,915               -                         
3854 Local area service 57,843             -                    57,843               -                         
3855 Local area service 50,051             -                    50,051               -                         
3856 Local area service 110,442           -                    110,442             -                         
3857 Local area service 3,120               -                    3,120                 -                         
3858 Local area service 4,550               -                    4,550                 -                         
3859 Local area service 30,028             -                    30,028               -                         
3860 Local area service 66,666             -                    66,666               -                         
3861 Local area service 61,940             -                    61,940               -                         
3862 Local area service 63,606             -                    63,606               -                         
3863 Local area service 26,251             -                    26,251               -                         
3864 Capital Works 622,594           -                    622,594             -                         
3889 Ball Diamond Relocation 250,000           -                    250,000             -                         
3807 Local area service 144,395           -                    144,395             -                         
3714 Local area service 33,500             -                    33,500               -                         
3715 Local area service 14,585             -                    14,585               -                         
3716 Local area service 17,350             -                    17,350               -                         
3717 Local area service 50,000             -                    50,000               -                         
3718 Local area service 17,675             -                    17,675               -                         
3719 Local area service 53,800             -                    53,800               -                         
3720 Local area service 43,020             -                    43,020               -                         
3721 Local area service 22,625             -                    22,625               -                         
3722 Local area service 49,500             -                    49,500               -                         
3723 Local area service 45,550             -                    45,550               -                         
3685 Local area service 16,500             -                    16,500               -                         
3914 South Peace Multiplex 9,850,000        -                    9,850,000          -                         

1,911,868        1,683,179     228,689             418,477              
20,463,027      4,462,297     16,000,730        5,051,514           

Water
2540 Water improvements 29,000             29,000          -                         2,216                 
2750 Water improvements 334,350           261,288        73,062               95,135                
2817 Water treatment plant 1,074,000        768,408        305,592             373,117              
2930 Water improvements 265,000           157,069        107,931             123,043              
2952 Water improvements 550,000           325,992        224,008             255,373              
3007 Water improvements 375,000           200,883        174,117             194,484              
3089 Water improvements 50,000             24,069          25,931               28,517                
3154 Water improvements 377,500           162,193        215,307             233,904              
3231 Water improvements 328,000           124,767        203,233             218,621              
3297 Water improvements 375,000           125,052        249,948             266,704              

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

  Heritage Industrial Park
 Total General



103298 Water improvements 550,000           183,409        366,591             391,166              
3347 Water improvements 620,000           179,050        440,950             467,334              
3378 Water improvements 2,250,000        649,777        1,600,223          1,695,970           
3421 Water improvements 500,000           144,395        355,605             376,882              
3498 Water improvements 195,000           48,016          146,984             154,887              
3544 Water improvements 750,000           125,332        624,668             652,238              

3619/03 Water improvements 1,200,000        114,408        1,085,592          1,125,603           
3646 Water improvements 375,334           48,924          326,410             339,550              

3527/04 Water improvements 700,000           66,738          633,262             656,602              
3619/04 Water improvements 1,971,000        187,915        1,783,085          1,848,803           

3527 Water improvements 556,666           -                    556,666             -                         
3824 Water improvements 555,000           -                    555,000             -                         
3888 Water improvements 1,844,900        -                    1,844,900          -                         

15,825,750$    3,926,685$   11,899,065$      9,500,149$           Total Water
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8  Long Term Debt (Continued)

City Purpose Issued Redeemed Outstanding Outstanding
Bylaw # 2007 2006

Sewer   
2540 Sewer improvements 149,000$         149,000$      -$                       11,387$              
2750 Sewer improvements 77,175             60,311          16,864               21,959                
2930 Sewer improvements 60,000             35,563          24,437               27,859                
3089 Sewer improvements 140,000           67,392          72,608               79,849                
3347 Sewer improvements 485,000           140,063        344,937             365,576              
3759 Sewer improvements 300,000           20,552          279,448             289,925              

1,211,175        472,881        738,294             796,555              

37,499,952$    8,861,863$   28,638,089$      15,348,218$       

Future debt principle reductions
  on existing debt: General Water Sewer Total

2008 772,999           487,607        33,125               1,293,731           
2009 544,310           487,607        33,125               1,065,042           
2010 526,748           487,607        33,125               1,047,480           
2011 526,748           477,495        30,791               1,035,034           
2012 526,748           445,015        30,791               1,002,554           

2,897,553$      2,385,331$   160,957$           5,443,841$         

9  Physical Capital Assets

Opening Acquisitions Disposals Balance Balance
Balance 2007 2006

Land 2,868,440$                          314,164$         -$                  3,182,604$        2,868,440$         
Buildings 61,559,829                          13,846,437      -                    75,406,266        61,559,829         
Machinery and equipment 14,024,393                          724,635           (74,894)         14,674,134        14,024,393         
Parks 4,300,312                            35,822             -                    4,336,134          4,300,312           
Streets, roads and lanes 47,178,870                          1,828,004        -                    49,006,874        47,178,870         
Sidewalks 4,028,371                            232,975           -                    4,261,346          4,028,371           
Engineering structures 39,882,176                          289,366           -                    40,171,542        39,882,176         

173,842,391$                      17,271,403$    (74,894)$       191,038,900$    173,842,391$     

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

  Total Sewer
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10  Net Municipal Property Taxes

2007 2006

   Municipal Property Taxes $      10,878,518  $        9,849,468 
   Add:        Requisitions collected on behalf of other taxing authorities

Ministry of Finance (school taxes)                             4,237,418            4,036,157 
Peace River Regional District                            1,224,093            1,143,954 
Peace River Regional Hospital District                               310,300               279,662 
British Columbia Assessment Authority                                  87,090                 79,723 
Municipal Finance Authority                                        214                      159 

   Total property taxes collected         16,737,633          15,389,123 

   Less:       Requisitions paid out to other taxing authorities          (5,844,893)           (5,515,075)

   Net Municipal Property Taxes  $      10,892,740  $        9,874,048 

11  Government Transfers

2007 2006

   Unconditional
Provincial equalization $          341,403  $           316,025 
Industrial tax program           7,416,275            6,562,120 

          7,757,678            6,878,145 

   Conditional  
Tourism                43,922                 60,141 
Traffic fine grant              202,761               185,387 
New Deal Gas Tax (Note 12)              205,451               309,352 
Green City Award                50,000                          - 
Energy                62,356                   9,000 
Drug Strategy                  2,500                   7,500 
Reimbursement for PST project                          -               231,049 
Planning Grant                  5,150                          - 
Sub regional requisition 390,102                           362,966 
South Peace Capital Pool Trust 510,517                           430,000 
Regional Fire Protection 167,747                           111,000 
Regional 911 Service 159,858                           160,550 
Arterial Lighting 1,372                                          - 
Airport Capital Assistance Program 189                                  224,172 
Ministry of Transportation (220,498)                          220,498 
Federal/Provincial Infrastructure 230,360                        1,830,496 
Localmotion 948,109                                      - 
Tree Canada Foundation -                                              300 
Education grants - City Kids Daycare 30,600                               10,857 
Summer Placement grant 12,484                                 3,680 
Water Infrastructure 651,718                           398,929 

          3,454,698            4,555,877 

 $      11,212,376  $      11,434,022 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK
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12  Federal Gas Tax Agreement Fund

2007 2006

Opening balance of unspent funds $                      -  $           154,728 
   Add:      Amounts received during the year             205,451               154,624 

 Interest earned                 1,546                          - 
  Deduct: Amount spent            (206,997)              (309,352)

Closing balance of unspent funds  $                      -  $                      - 

13  Prior Period Adjustments

2006

Amount previously recorded 82,972$             
Prior period adjustment               343,937 
Adjusted balance 426,909$            

Rental revenue previously recorded 288,621$           
Prior period adjustment (131,816)           
Adjusted rental revenue 156,805              

Total prior period adjustments 475,753$           

14  Pension Liability

Every three years an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and the adequacy of plan funding. The
most recent valuation as at December 31, 2006 indicated a surplus of $438 million for basic pension benefits. The next valuation will be
as at December 31, 2009 with results available in 2010. The actuary does not attribute portions of the unfunded liability to individual
employers.  The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek paid $538,591 for contributions to the plan in fiscal 2007.

The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the plan), a jointly-trusted
pension plan. The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the
pension plan, including investment of the assets and administration of the benefits. The pension plan is a multi-employer contributory
pension plan. Basic pension benefits provided are defined. The plan has about 144,000 active members and approximately 51,000
retired members.  Active members include approximately 35,000 contributors from local governments.

DECEMBER 31, 2007

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

In accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards, future employee benefits are required to be recorded as a liability and expense in
the year the service was performed. A prior period adjustment was recorded and applied retroactively to reflect those benefits vesting in
2006 and prior years that was previously not recorded.  Previous year amounts have been restated accordingly.

The City receives rental revenue for the RCMP detachment building from the Federal Government based on a predetermined formula that
includes a capital component and an operating component. The revenues received are based on an establishment ratio that determines
the Federal Government share of rent based on the number of federal and provincial members compared to the federal, provincial and
municipal members. This ratio changed from 23/48 to 9/36 when the call center relocated to Prince George thereby reducing the amount
of rental revenue receivable.  Previous year amounts have been adjusted to reflect this change as follows:

Gas Tax funding is provided by the Government of Canada. The use of the funding is established by a funding agreement between the
City of Dawson Creek and the Union of British Columbia Municipalities. Gas Tax funding may be used towards designated public transit,
community energy, water, wastewater, solid waste and capacity building projects, as specified in the funding agreements.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15  Consolidated Expenditures by Object

2007 2006

  Salaries, wages and employee benefits 9,903,393$        9,445,680$         
  Contracted and general services 6,099,328          6,059,413           
  Materials, goods, supplies 3,632,596          3,419,496           
  Utilities 1,174,913          1,100,933           
  Interest on long term debt 1,441,158          1,292,453           
  Other 1,590,348          1,696,277           

23,841,736$      23,014,252$       

16  Lease Commitments

2008 105,040$         
2009 105,040           
2010 87,758             
2011 47,033             
2012 47,033             

17  Non Monetary Transaction

18  Subsequent Events

The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek signed a contract with Global Spectrum Facility Management, L.P. on March 11, 2008 to
manage the operations of the Encana Events Centre effective January 1, 2008. The agreement is for ten years and expires on December
31, 2017. The financial effect of this agreement includes payment of a fixed monthly management fee of $ 12,500 during the pre-opening
phase and $ 15,625 per month after the opening date to December 31, 2008. In year two the fixed management fee will be $ 12,500 per
month. Beginning in year three and thereafter the management fee will be increased by the greater of the consumer price index and/or 3
%. Revenues and expenditures related to the Encana Events Centre will be included in the City's five year financial plan.

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, Municipalities will be required to begin recording depreciation on
their tangible capital assets effective January 1, 2009 with retroactive application to January 1, 2008. The financial impact of this
accounting change is not determinable at this time.

During the year the City of Dawson Creek exchanged 103 acres of land east of the Airport for $ 1,000,000 of paving services related to
the east and south parking areas and roadways at the South Peace Community Mulitplex. The exchange of assets was recorded at the
cost of services provided. The cost of these services approximated the estimated fair market value of the land that was transferred and
therefore no gain or loss was recorded on the transfer.

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

Lease commitments outstanding at December 31, 2007 amount to $ 105,040. Monthly lease payments are $ 6,670. Future lease
payments are as follows:



Schedule 1

2007 2007 2006
Actual Budget Actual

(unaudited) (restated)

Revenue
Net municipal property taxes (Note 10) 10,892,740$         10,823,294$         9,874,048$           
Grants in lieu of taxes and utility taxes 429,734                383,757                380,592                
Sale of services 4,005,316             3,379,939             3,778,936             
Other revenue from own sources 1,510,593             1,250,356             1,580,609             
Government transfers (Note 11) 9,091,981             9,187,249             8,329,927             
Return on investments 138,514                157,767                278,353                
Utility fees 3,117,329             2,992,580             3,017,689             

29,186,207           28,174,942           27,240,154           

Expenditures
General government services 2,723,636             2,953,031             3,131,360             
Protective services 5,393,417             5,775,835             5,060,311             
Transportation services 3,001,583             3,072,571             3,145,158             
Air transport 1,110,497             904,756                1,088,134             
Environmental health services 972,639                1,042,984             920,763                
Public health and welfare 144,431                154,778                113,068                
Environmental development services 1,357,151             1,510,649             865,164                
Recreational and cultural services 5,302,044             5,563,306             4,879,785             
Long term debt charges 1,441,158             1,523,533             1,292,953             
Water and sewer utility charges 2,369,780             2,816,756             2,517,556             

23,816,336           25,318,199           23,014,252           

Excess of Revenue over Expenditures 5,369,871             2,856,743             4,225,902             

Interfund Transfers
Net transfer to capital funds (2,149,983)            (2,912,054)            (2,078,716)            
Net transfer to reserve funds (312,050)               -                            -                        
Net transfer from cemetery funds 10,605                  -                            9,459                    

(2,451,428)            (2,912,054)            (2,069,257)            

Deduct:             Debt principal repayment (1,245,493)            (1,375,440)            (1,289,491)            

Change in Fund Balances 1,672,950             (1,430,751)            867,154                

General Funds, as previously reported 2,642,365             3,118,118             2,250,964             

Prior period adjustment (Note 13) -                            -                            (475,753)               

General Funds, as restated 2,642,365             3,118,118             1,775,211             

General Funds, end of year 4,315,315$           1,687,367$           2,642,365$           

 
Summary of General Fund Positions

Appropriated Surplus
                            Reserve for future expenditures 631,928$              544,644$              701,536$              
                            Contingency reserve 552,238                762,640                635,214                
Unappropriated Surplus
                            General 1,644,418             -                            (148,328)               
                            Water 1,147,348             351,264                576,264                
                            Sewer 339,383                28,819                  877,679                

4,315,315$           1,687,367$           2,642,365$           

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING FUND OPERATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2007



Schedule 2

2007 2007 2006
Actual Budget Actual

(unaudited) (restated)

Revenue
Municipal Finance Authority cash refunds 378,809$           -$                       115,293$           
Government Transfers 1,830,376          1,799,769          653,596             
South Peace Capital Pool Trust 510,517             -                         -                         
Multiplex funding 130,000             1,685,000          2,657,000          
Interest 51,693               -                         293,450             
Partner Contributions -                         -                         13,375               
Ministry of Transportation (220,499)            75,000               220,499             
Other contributions 81,373               -                         157,901             

2,762,269          3,559,769          4,111,114          

Expenditures
General government capital purchases 394,979             1,120,101          230,556             
Protective services capital purchases 38,692               153,000             126,611             
Transportation capital purchases 1,592,783          2,003,973          3,584,101          
Recreation and culture capital purchases 13,403,547        14,966,168        17,828,656        
Water capital purchases 1,716,559          2,468,272          1,221,387          
Sewer capital purchases 124,843             448,860             111,386             

17,271,403        21,160,374        23,102,697        

Excess of (Expenditures over Revenue) (14,509,134)       (17,600,605)       (18,991,583)       

Interfund Transfers and Funding
Net proceeds from debenture debt financing 14,745,072        11,634,420        -                         
Net proceeds from temporary borrowings 3,964,535          -                         2,039,037          
Net transfer from reserve funds 1,470,189          713,656             865,532             
Net transfer from general funds 2,149,983          2,912,054          2,078,716          

22,329,779        15,260,130        4,983,285          
Deduct:  Temporary borrowing principal repayment (5,458,430)         -                         -                         

Equity adjustment (1,234,353)         -                         -                         
(6,692,783)         -                         -                         

Change in Capital Funds 1,127,862          (2,340,475)         (14,008,298)       

Capital Funds, beginning of year 2,970,883          2,970,883          16,979,181        

Capital Funds, end of year 4,098,745$        630,408$           2,970,883$        

Summary of Capital Fund Positions
General capital reserve 2,047,715$        304,826$           2,595,301$        
Water capital reserve 1,390,161          220,022             270,022             
Sewer capital reserve 660,869             105,560             105,560             

4,098,745$        630,408$           2,970,883$        

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL FUND OPERATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2007



Schedule 3

2007 2006

Revenue
Sale of equipment 9,650$               31,000$             
Land sales 1,041,196          -                         
Tax sale property land sales -                         132,362             
Surplus on equipment pool 315,755             331,148             
Return on investments 18,289               42,584               

1,384,890          537,094             

Expenditures
Refund on land sale 25,400               -                         

Net Revenue over Expenditures 1,359,490          537,094             

Interfund Transfers
Net transfer from operating funds 312,050             -                         
Net transfer to capital funds (1,470,189)         (865,532)            

Change in Reserve Funds 201,351             (328,438)            

Reserve Funds, beginning of year 418,338             746,776             

Reserve Funds, end of year 619,689$           418,338$          
 
Summary of Reserve Fund Positions

Statutory Reserves
            Land sales 41,194$             -$                       
            Off street parking 12,592               -                         
            Equipment replacement 367,582             107,011             
            Tax sale 198,321             311,327             

619,689$           418,338$           

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

SCHEDULE OF RESERVE FUND OPERATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2007



Schedule 4

2007 2006

Revenue
Miscellaneous fees 5,428$               4,667$               
Interest 10,605               9,459                 

16,033               14,126               

Interfund Transfers
Transfer to general funds (10,605)              (9,459)                

Change in Cemetery Funds 5,428                 4,667                 

Cemetery Funds, beginning of year 236,279             231,612             

Cemetery Funds, end of year 241,707$           236,279$           

Summary of Cemetery Fund Positions
Brookside reserve  72,307$             68,004$             
Cemetery maintenance  169,400             168,275             

241,707$           236,279$           

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

SCHEDULE OF CEMETERY FUND OPERATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2007



Schedule 5

2007 2006
(restated)

Increase
Debt principal repayment 1,153,993$        1,197,991$        
Temporary borrowing principal repayment 5,458,430          -                         
Short term debt repayment 91,500               91,500               
Actuarial adjustments on debt 301,206             365,031             
Capital expenditures 17,271,403        23,102,698        

24,276,532        24,757,220        

Decrease
Capital asset disposals, at cost (74,894)              (270,322)            
Equity adjustment 1,234,353          94,724               
Temporary borrowing proceeds (3,964,545)         (2,039,037)         
Debenture debt proceeds (14,745,072)       (210,848)            

(17,550,158)       (2,425,483)         

Change in Equity in Physical Capital Assets 6,726,374          22,331,737        

Equity in Physical Capital Assets, beginning of year 152,493,690      130,161,953      

Equity in Physical Capital Assets, end of year 159,220,064$    152,493,690$    

Summary of Equity in Physical Capital Assets Positions
General capital 123,355,724$    117,417,342$    
Water Capital 21,404,278        20,799,390        
Sewer capital 14,460,062        14,276,958        

159,220,064$    152,493,690$    

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

SCHEDULE OF EQUITY IN PHYSICAL CAPITAL ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2007
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